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1. BAO CAO 'CUA CHU TICH

Kinh gi cac Thanh vién,

Téi rat vui dwoc trinh bay bao cdo dau tién cla t6i véi tw cach 1a Cha tich Gascoyne Water Co-
operative. Chi méi bwéc vao vi tri Chu tich va hién dang thuc hién nhiém ky dau tién cda tdi trong
Hoi ddng Quan tri, d6 1a mot trai nghiém bé ich va quy gia cho dén nay.

Trong subt cd ndm qua, t6i da rat thich lam viéc cung véi cac Giam dbc thanh vién hién tai cia
ching ta va cac dai dién bén ngoai. Mirc dd kién thirc, kinh nghiém va tinh chuyén nghiép cta
cac thanh vién Hoi ddng Quan tri 14 dang ké, va cac cudc thao luan cla ching ta ludn mang tinh
xay dwng va tap trung. C6 mot cam két manh mé va chung trong viéc duy tri cac tiéu chuan quan
tri cao, déng thoi ddm bao ching ta tiép tuc cung cip dich vu quan trong cho cac thanh vién va
céng ddng rong lén hon.

Hoi ddng Quan tri da tap trung cao dd vao viéc tuan tha, phan anh sw phirc tap ngay cang téng
cta cac khuén khd phap ly va hoat ddng ma cong ty Co-operative hoat dong. Hoi ddng Quan tri
céng nhan rang cach tiép can chl dong va toan dién dbéi véi viéc tuan tha 1a nén tang dé dap ing
cac nghia vu phap ly clia ching ta va duy tri niém tin cla cac thanh vién va cac bén lién quan.

Phdi hop véi ban quan ly, Hoi ddng Quan tri da thwe hién mot loat cac sang kién nham ciing ¢
va tang cwong cac chimpesattheva cotnful@ndebdndinhecHihts déas grautied tiedsyisteon atic/teuiey
cb cAu tric bao cdo t6 chirc clia ching ta. M6t thanh twu quan trong 13 viéc trién khai Hé théng
Quan ly Chét lwvgng (QMS) chinh thire, dwoc thiét ké dé cung cdp mot khudn khd nhat quan va
c6 cau tric cho hoat ddng xuét sac, cai tién lién tuc va trach nhiém giai trinh & tAt ca cac cap cua
td chirc.

Trong twong lai, cong ty Co-operative dang chuan bj theo dudi chirng nhan ISO 9084, mét tiéu
chuén dwoc céng nhan trén toan ciu vé Quan ly Chat lwong. Pat duwoc ISO 9001 sé thé hién
cam két clia chung t6i trong viéc cung cip cac dich vu nhat quan, tuan thi va minh bach cho cac
Thanh vién, ddng thdi thic ddy van hda cai tién lién tuc. Ngoai ra, cac quy trinh |ap héa don va
quan tri clia chung ti da dwoc cai tién, gidp giao tiép chinh xac va kip thdi hon véi cac Thanh
vién.

Viéc tiép tuc dau tw vao dao tao va nang cao nhan thirc nhan vién da dam bao rang ca hai
nguyén tac tuan tha va dam bao chét lwong déu duwoc dwa vao van hoa hang ngay cla té chirc.
Théng qua nhirng nd lwc nay, Co-operative cé vi tri tbt hon dé déi phé véi nhirng thach thirc mai
ndi, gidm thiéu rdi ro hoat dong va ddm bao sw lién két lién tuc véi cac tiéu chuan quy dinh va
nganh.

Mot diém ndi bat trong nam la viéc hoan thanh giai doan dau tién cia dw an GISAM. Cam két
chung nay

important infrastructure initiative represents a major investment in the region’s long - an ninh
nguén nuwéc dai han va nang lwc hoat ddng. Hoi ddng Quan tri van tham gia chét ché trong subt
qua trinh, dam bao quan tri manh mé&, giam sat va phu hop véi nhu cau cda thanh vién.

La mot phan cla giai doan ban dau nay, 17 16 khoan méi da duoc lap dat & Northern Borefield,
tang dang ké kha ndng cung cap nuwéc va tang cwong khd nang phuc hdi clia mang lwéi cla
chung ta. Céng trinh nay danh d4u moét cot méc quan trong trong viéc phat trién co s& ha tang
cung cap-nudc clia chung ta. Giai doan cudi cling clia GISAM 1a Sang kién Gascoyne Food Bowl
Initiative (GFBI) dw kién sé& hoan thanh trong nhirng thang t&i, tiép tuc xay dwng trén nén tang
virng chac nay.



Song song véi cac wu tién hoat dong cta ching ta, Hoi ddng Quan tri da tiép tuc thuc day
cac cudc thao luan lién quan dén viéc hop nhét tiém ndng. Cac cudc thao luan nay da duoc
tiép can voi sy siéng ndng va tdm nhin xa, v&i s nhAn manh manh mé vao viéc dam bao
rang béat ky con duwéng phia trwdc nao dwoc dé xuat déu phu hop véi loi ich 1au dai cia cac
thanh vién va tinh bén virng cltia cac dich vu cla ching ta. M&c du qua trinh nay van dang
dién ra, ching ta cam két giao tiép cdi m& va dé xuét cudi cung sé dwoc chia sé véi cac
thanh vién sau khi né dwgc dwa ra va xac nhan mét cach thich hop.

Ho6i ddng Quan tri van tap trung vao viéc ddm bao rang tat ca cac ké hoach twong lai dugc
cing ¢ b&i quan tri lanh manh, sy tham gia ctia cac bén lién quan va hiéu biét rd rang vé
nhu cau nwéc ngay cang tang cta khu vwe. Binh hwéng chién lwoc cla ching ta sé tiép tuc
phan anh s& ménh clia Co-operative trong viéc cung cip nwédc an toan, hiéu qua va bén
virng cho cac thanh vién va cdng ddng rong Ién hon.

Téi mudn chinh thirc ghi nhan nhirtng né lwc clia nhan vién chang téi trong subt ca nam qua.
Sw chuyén nghiép, tan tdm va cam két ctia ho dbi v&i cac muc tiéu clia Co-operative 1a cbng
cu gilp chung ta dat dwgrc cac muc tiéu ctia minh va duy tri cac tiéu chuan cao ma cac thanh
vién mong doi. M&i thanh vién trong nhém déng mét vai trd quan trong trong sw thanh cong
lién tuc cua té chirc va thay mat Hoi ddng Quan tri, tdi xin chan thanh cdm on nhirng déng
go6p quy bau clia ho.

Trong tup’ng lai, t6i lac quan vé twong lai Cl]g Gascoyne Water Co-operativg. V&i nén tang
vq’ng chac, déi ngi tan tam va trong tém chién Iwoc rd rang, téi tin twdng rang chung ta sé
tiép tuc phat trién, thich nghi va cung cép cho cac thanh vién va cac bén lién quan.

Tran trong

Paul Shain

Chu tich - Gascoyne Water Co-operative




2. BAO CAO DICH VU DOANH NGHIEP

Kinh gi cac Thanh vién ctia Gascoyne Water Co-operative,

Toi rat vinh dy duoc tw gi¢i thiéu minh la Giam déc Dich vu Doanh nghiép maoi tai Gascoyne
Water Co-operative. Téi chinh thirc bat ddu ddm nhan vai trd nay vao thang 10 nam 2024 va
trong khi téi gia nhap té chirc sau khi két thiic ndm tai chinh 2023-2024, t6i da danh nhirng
thang dau tién dé hiéu rd hon vé bdi canh hoat ddng, nhu ciu cltia cac Thanh vién va nhirng
thach thirc phai d6i mét trong nhirtng ndm gan day.

Over this time, I've come to appreciate both the strategic importance of the Co-operativeng
supporting the region’s growers and the immense effort required to deliver water services
hiéu qua trong mdt méi trwdng nang déng va doi hdi khat khe. T6i cling nhan ra rang Co-
operative da trai qua giai doan gian doan va khéng chac chan, dac biét lién quan dén viéc luan
chuyén nhan vién va bat 6n hé thdng ndi bd. Nhirng thach thirc nay da &nh hudng dé hiéu dén
hiéu suat hang ngay, anh hudng dén tinh lién tuc ca dich vu va lam x6i mon niém tin gitra
mot sé Thanh Vién.

Khi d@m nhan vai tro nay, t6i tap trung vao nhiém vu xay dwng niém tin, mang lai sw on dinh
hoat déng va tdng cudng cac chirc nang ndi bd hd tror dang tin cay va minh bach

Member service. It's clear to me that the Co-thgerhtodeig 1au longdai khong chi phu thudc vao
viéc cung cap nwdc, ma con phu thudc vao viéc cung cap nwdc mot cach hiéu qua, liém chinh
va trach nhiém giai trinh.

Bao cao nay phac thao mét s wu tién chinh ma chung ta hién dang thwc hién dé cai thién
hoat ddng néi bd, nang cao kha nang dap rng va dinh vi Co-operative cho mét twong lai
manh mé hon, kién cwdng hon.

We've placed significant emphasis on recruiting and retaining mot nhom nhd nhan vién dia
phuwong lanh nghé, diéu nay rat quan trong dé xay dwng mét déi ngd tw tin va én dinh. Loi ich
cla trong tdm nay da trd nén rd rang, véi cac hoat ddng hang ngay tré nén nhat quan hon va
nhan vién ngay cang dwoc trao quyén dé hd tro cac Thanh vién véi sw chuyén nghiép, hiéu
biét sau s&c va cham sdc tai dia phuong.

We've also worked closely with our external accountants, RSM Australia, to review our

quy trinh tai chinh va hanh chinh. Sw hop tac nay da gidp chung ta xac dinh cac co hdi dé nang
cao hiéu qua ndi bd, giam chi phi khéng can thiét va ddm béo rang cac nguén lwc dang dwoc
phan bé-hiéu qua trong toan té chirc. Nhirng cai tién nay khong chi vé sirc khde tai chinh  ma
con dam bdo Co-operative cé thé duy tri va phat trién cac dich vu ctia minh trong twong lai.

Viéc trién khai Hé théng Quan ly Chét luong (QMS) da mang lai cu tric méi va rd rang cho mét
sb chirc nang kinh doanh cbt 16i, bao gébm: Tuan tha , Quan ly Tai san, Strc khde va An toan
Nghé nghiép (OHS), Kiém soat Tai liéu, Béo cdo va Bam bao Chét lwong.

Khudn khd nay gitp diéu chinh cach ching ta lam viéc, gidm rdi ro va tao ra sy nhat quan hon
trong cac quy trinh va ra quyét dinh cGa ching ta. N6 ciing hd tro' tinh minh bach va trach
nhiém giai trinh tbt hon, diéu nay rat can thiét dé duy tri niém tin ctia Thanh vién.



Vé méat cong nghé, hiéu suat CNTT va dé tin cay van la mét [inh vuwc wu tién. Trong khi nhiéu
the issues we are addressing predate my commencement, we've already made meaningful
tién bd trong viéc 6n dinh cac hé thdng quan trong va bat dau xay dwng nang lwc ctia nhan
vién théng qua dao tao va cai thién hd tro. Nhirng cai tién nay sé& gop phan lam cho quy trinh
lam viéc trong ndi bd tron tru hon va cho phép chung t6i cung cép cac dich vu dang tin cay
hon cho cac Thanh vién.

Vé& mat phap ly, Gascoyne Water Co-operative tiép tuc dap rng cac nghia vu tuan thi ctia minh
v&i cac co quan chi chét, bao gédm Co quan Quéan ly Kinh té (ERA) va Bé Quan ly Nuwéc va Méi
trwdng (DWER). Nhém Dich vu Doanh nghiép clia chang t6i duy tri mdi quan hé hop tac tich cuc
v&i ca hai co quan quan ly dé& ddm bao rang cac yéu cau tuan tha khéng chi duwoc dap ting ma
con phu hop véioperative’s strategic goals and the nhu cau chung clia cac Thanh vién. Ching
t6i hién dang chuén bi cho Banh gia Hé théng Quan Iy Tai s&n ERA day du, du kién vao thang 5
nam 2025.

Cudi cung, t&i mudn chan thanh cdm on cac Thanh vién clia chang ta vi da tiép tuc kién nhan,
hd tro va tham gia trong giai doan chuyé&n ddi nay. Téi cam két hop tac lam viéc véi nhan vién,
Ban Giam déc va quy vi, —cac Thanh viéa-clia ching ta  dé tao ra nhitng cai tién cé y nghia
va lau dai mang lai lgi ich cho toan b6 Co-operative.

T6i mong mudn tiép tuc cong viéc quan trong nay khi chung ta xay dwng moét twong lai manh
mé, bén virng va dang tin cay cho Gascoyne Water Co-operative.

Tran trong,

AT

Suzi Kent

3. HOI DPONG QUAN TRI TAI NGAY 30 THANG 6 NAM 2024

Domenico Condo (Giam déc Thanh vién)

Ong Domenico Condo ty hao cé mét lich st 1anh dao an twong trong td chirc GWC, nganh tréng
trot va cong dong dia phwong. Sy tham gia cla 6ng Condo ’bat ngudn tir Ban chi dao dan dén
viéc thanh 1ap GWC vao ndm 2001. Ong Domenico Condo da phuc vu trong Hoi ddng Quan tri
nham chirc v&i sw cdng hién kéo dai 15 nam, trong d6 cé 8 ndm lam Chu tich té chirc.

Ong Condo d4 tich Iy kién thirc va kinh nghiém tréng trot tr du nhirng nam 1970. Chuyén mén
cla 6ng mé& rong sang cac chwong trinh kinh doanh va quan ly nwéc, dwoc dinh hinh b&i nhirng
nd lwc kinh doanh clia 6ng & quan Mildura clia Victoria. Dang chd y, 6ng da dwa mét doanh
nghiép théat bai I&n tdm cao mdi, bién n6 thanh mot don vi san xuét thanh céng vé nho, cam quyt,
dau, ca rét, dwa hiu va cac loai rau cao cap khac. Thanh tich nay 1én dén dinh diém khi 6ng
gianh duwoc Gidi thwédng Doanh nghiép méi ctia ndm Victoria khai mac vao ndm 1994. Ong
Condo ciing da phat trién mét doanh nghiép thinh vwong & Carnarvon, bat dau tir con s6 khéng
vao nam 1995 va phat trién né thanh moét co s& san xuét nho khd nguyén canh Table Grapes trai
rong trén bdn dia diém. Ong Condo ciing la mét ngudi déng goép tan tam cho cong déng
Carnarvon,



tich cwe tham gia vao cac Hoi dong va Uy ban kinh doanh va coéng ddng khac nhau ké tr khi 6ng
dén.

Paul Shain (Giam d6c Thanh vién)

Ong Paul Shain dwoc b nhiém vao Hoi ddng Quan tri tai Dai hoi ddng cb dong thwdng nién ndm
2021. La nguoi trong trot thé hé thir hai, dng Shain da c6 26 experience nam déi mét véi nhivng
thach thirc ma nganh tréng trot phai d6i mat va cam két thuc dy Gascoyne Water Co- operative
hwéng téi tdng trwdng bén virng. Sy tham gia ca nhan cla éng trong viéc tréng mot loat cac loai
cay tréng, bao gdbm dau, 6t, ca tim, ca chua, &t va bi xanh, phan anh kinh nghiém thuc tién va
chuyén mén da dang cua 6ng.

Mr. vai trd Shain’sda dién trong cac Gy ban va té chirc khac nhau trong linh vic tréng trot cho
thay cach tiép can chi déng va cam két hop tac cong déng ctia dng. Vai trd clia 6ng véi tw cach
la Chu tich Vegetables WA va Cha tich Uy ban Hiép hoi Nguwoi tréng Carnarvon nhan manh
nhirng déng goép rong Ién hon cla dng cho nganh & cap khu vire.

Denis Durmanich (Giam déc Thanh vién)

Ong Denis Durmanich, mét ngudi trong trot thé hé thr hai trong khu viee Carnarvon Horticultural,
quan ly mét danh muc dau tw da dang cac doanh nghiép trong khu vwc, chuyén tréng dua ludi,
&t chuéng va bi ngoi. Ong 1a mét nhan vat cé gia tri mang lai kha nang Ianh dao, chuyén moén va
sy cdng hién cho viéc thic day ting trwdng va phat trién bén virng trong khu vuc.

Ong Durmanich da hoan thanh thanh céng Khéa hoc Giam déc Co-operative do Vién Giam dbc
Co-operative Uc t6 chirc, nhdn manh sy cdng hién clia éng trong viéc tiép thu cac kj nang va
kién thirc can thiét dé dong gop vao viéc quan tri va dinh hwéng chién lwoc ciia Gascoyne Water
Co-operative Ltd. La Giam dbc va Chu tich clia Gascoyne Gold Pty Ltd, dng Durmanich giam séat
mot td chirc quan trong giadi quyét cac yéu cau phan loai, ddng géi va van chuyén hang hoéa cla
nguoi tréng. Thoéng qua vi tri nay, dng déng mot vai trd quan trong trong viéc hd tro va nang cao
cac khia canh hoat dong cua céng dE‘)ng trf“)ng trot dia phwong.

Anthony Vrankovich (Giam déc Thanh vién)

C)ng Anthony (Tony) Vrankovich dugc bd nhiém vao vi tri Giam déc Thanh vién tai Dai hoi
ddng Thanh vién dac biét dwoc td chirc vao ngay 27 thang 8 ndm 2021. Ong Vrankovich sinh
ra & Carnarvon va la ndng dan thé hé th hai. Ong la mét trong nhirng thanh vién sang lap
cta Gascoyne Gold Pty Ltd khodng 20 nam truéc va van la ddng s& hiru/Giam déc hién tai.
Ong Vrankovich la thanh vién cta Ban chi dao Thay lgi Carnarvon dan dén sy hinh thanh cla
GWC va GWAMCO. Ong ciing da phuc vu 9 ndm trong Gy ban CGA.

Saxon Boston (Giam déc Thanh vién)

Saxon Boston, dwoc bdé nhiém vao vi tri Giam déc Thanh vién trong cudc hop Dai hdi ddng cb
déng thang 3 nam 2023. Ong Boston c6 35 ndm kinh nghiém thuc tién va kién thirc sau rong vé
Khu Trdng trot Carnarvon. Ong hién dang lam Giam déc Tréng trot véi Harvest Road va ciing 1a
cht s& hiru ctia Northwest Solutions Pty Ltd, mét cdng ty dao dat chuyén vé dién ngdm, nwéc va
théng tin lién lac. Cong ty clia 6ng da dam bao thanh céng cac hop déng véi Water



Corporation, Horizon Power, Telstra va GWC. Saxon déng mét vai trd quan trong trong viéc 1ap
dat Dy an Buwong dng Thay loi Gascoyne va quén ly cac hoat dong thue dia ctia GWC trong ba
nam. Ong ciing da phuc vu hai nhiém ky véi tw cach 1a Uy vién Hoi ddng cho Quan Carnarvon.
Kinh nghiém cla éng vuwot ra ngoai nwéc Uc, tirng lam viéc cho ICI Pacific Seeds, Velcourt &
Anh va Leo Lithium & Tay B&c Phi.

Nic Cuthbert (Giam d6c Khéng phai Thanh vién Ban Quan tri)

Ong Nic Cuthbert, Giam déc Diéu hanh tai Hiép hdi Nguoi tréng Carnarvon, d&m nhan vi tri Giam
déc Phi Thanh vién binh thuéng vao ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2022. Ong Cuthbert cung c&p nhiéu
k§ ndng va chuyén mén, bao gébm kinh nghiém quan ly cdp cao, sy nhay bén vé tai chinh, trinh
dd chuyén mén vé nguén nhan lwc va kinh nghiém thwong mai trong Khu vwc Carnarvon
Horticultural Area. Ong Cuthbert ciing c6 hiéu biét sau s&c vé lap k& hoach kinh doanh, kha n&ng
giai quyét van dé, k§ nang quan ly khing hodng va hién dang gitr vai trd quan trong trong nganh.
Hon niva, sw quen thudc clia 6ng Cuthbert v&i cac thanh vien GWC bb sung thém mét khia canh
vé gia cho viéc rng cl clia dng, phan anh sy hiéu biét toan dién ctia éng vé dong lwc cia Co-
operative.

David Linder Patton (Giam déc Khong phai Thanh vién Ban Quan trj)

Ong David Linder Patton d&m nhan mét vi tri hop déng trong Hdi ddng Quan tri GWC véi tw cach
Ia Giam dbc Phi Thanh vién vao thang 4 nam 2024. David la mét nha lanh dao tai chinh va doanh
nghiép day dan kinh nghiém v&i nhiéu kinh nghiém trong viéc 1ap ké& hoach chién luvoc, phuc héi
doanh nghiép va lanh dao diéu hanh. La Ké toan Quan tri Céng chirng (ACMA) tlr nam 1992 va
la Thanh vién ctia Vién Giam déc Cong ty Uc (MAICD), éng cé bang HND vé Kinh doanh va Tai
chinh tir Leicester Polytechnic, Vwong quéc Anh (1987). Chuyén mén clia 6ng bao gdm cac bén
lién quan va quan ly thay dbi, trién khai cac hé théng MIS va ERP tich hop, va dat dwoc cac
chirng nhan 1SO. V¢i thanh tich da dwoc chirng minh trong viéc mua lai, thanh ly va huy dong
vbn, David da phuc vu thanh céng véi tw cach la Giam dbc diéu hanh tam thei va Giam déc tai
chinh, thuc day chuyén déi kinh doanh va tang truwéng tai chinh.



4. BAO CAO CUA BAN QUAN LY & BAN GIAM POC

Co’ cau Hoi dong Quan tri

Gascoyne Water Co-operative can duy tri it nhat 3 va tdi da 5 Giam dbc 1a Thanh vién cta Hoi
ddng Quan tri theo Quy dinh 47.1. Ngoai ra, Quy dinh 47.2 yéu cau it nhat 2 va téi da 4 Giam déc
Khéng phai 1a Thanh vién cta Hoi ddng Quan tri. Theo Quy dinh 48.2, Ban Giam déc c6 thé dé
c moét Giam déc Khéng phai la Thanh vién ctia Hoi ddng Quan tri dé tham gia bau clr, mién la
ho cé ky nang, kinh nghiém hoac kién thirc trong cac linh vic k§ thuat, cong nghiép, luat phap,
thwong mai hodc tai chinh.

Hoi ddng Quan tri GWC hién tai bao gdm 5 Thanh vién Ban Giam dbc va 1 Giam déc Khéng phai
l& Thanh vién cta Hoi ddng Quan tri. Qua trinh tuyén dung s&p hoan thanh dé bd nhiém Giam
déc Khong phai la Thanh vién cta Hoi ddng Quan tri thir hai. Théng tin chi tiét vé giam dbc, bao
gbm trinh d6 va kinh nghiém cutia ho, c6 san & cac trang truéc.

Trach nhiém cta Ban Giam déc

Ban Giam ddc chiu trach nhiém trwéc cac Thanh vit%n GWC vé hoat d(f)’ng cla Co-operative. Khi
hoan thanh trach nhiém ctia minh, Thanh vién Héi dong Quan tri cam két phuc vu lgi ich clia cac
thanh \(ién, khach hang, nhan vién va céng dong réng lon hon véi sy trung thwe, minh bach,
cbng bang va siéng nang.
Cam két nay phu hop Vo Diéu lé va Bo Quy tac ing x& cha Hoi ddng Quan tri. Trach nhiém's
chinh ctia H6i dong Quan tri la:

« Dinh hwéng chién luoc cho t6 chirc.

. Giam sat hoat déng tai chinh cuia Co-

operative. « B6 nhiém Giam dbéc Diéu

hanh va tién hanh danh gia hiéu suét.

Hoi ddng Quan tri cling nén:
+ Hoat dong trong pham vi quyén han va chinh sach theo luat dinh.
« Dam bao tuan thi luat phap hién hanh va chuan muc ké toan. «
Ung ho va giao tiép hiéu qua véi cac thanh vién.
. Thiét lap va xem xét cac chinh sach ctia Hoi déng Quan tri.
- Giam sat chién lwoc quan ly rii ro va danh gia hiéu suat quan 1y rdi ro. boéng
mot vai tro tich cwe trong viéc nubi dwdng va mé hinh hoa van hoa liém chinh.
« Giam sat strc khde va an toan lao dong.

Dé dap wng cac nghia vu nay, Ban Giam dbc:
. Thwong xuyén nhan duwgc cac bao cao toan dién do ké toan Co-operative bién
soan va trinh bay.
«  Nhan bao c&o tir kiém toan vién nhw moét phan cuia kiém toan gitra ky va kiém toan

cudi nam. C6 quyeén truy cap khéng han ché vao hé so va théng tin ctia Co-
operative.
. C6 quyén thué cac chuyén gia doc 1ap theo hinh thirc tap thé hodc ca nhan néu

can thiét.



Cudc hop Héi dong Quan tri

Chu tich, Thu ky Co-operative va Giam déc Diéu hanh cdng tac trong viéc thiét Iap ndi dung
chuwong trinh cuéc hop dé dam bao bao quat toan dién cac linh vic chién lwgc, tai chinh va lién
quan dén rai ro. H6i ddng Quan tri phai tich cwc tham gia cac Cudc hop Hoi ddng Quan tri va dwa
ra quyét dinh ddc lap. Trong ky bao cao nay, Hoi ddng Quan tri d3 triéu tap tbng cong 14 Cudc
hop H&i ddng Quén tri thdng thwéng nhu dwoc néu chi tiét dudi day.

Giam Bbc S6 Cudc Hop Ba Tham Dy Thoi Gian Lam Viéc
Ong Rodney Sweetman 2 01.07.2023 — 01/09/2023
Ong Domenico Condo 14 1/07/2023 — 30/06/2024
Ong Paul Shain 11 01.07.2023 — 30.06.2024
Ba Linda Lyall 1 01.07.2023 - 30.06.2023
Ong Denis Durmanich 14 01.07.2023 — 30.06.2023
Ong Anthony 11 02.10.2023 - 30.06.2024
Vrankovich Ong Saxon 3 14.04.2023 — 30.06.2024
Boston 12 01.07.2022 — 30.06.2023
Ong Nic Cuthbert 02 23.04.2024 24  —30.06.2024 30.06.2024
30.06.2024 30.06

Ong David Linder Patten

Bao hiém Ban Giam déc va Can b6 va Chirng thw Boi thworng

Theo quy dinh, Co-operative phai damoperative’s Rules, Gascoyne Water Cobdo cho cac can bd
ctia minh vé hai dbi véi moi trach nhiém phap ly, phi, 1& phi, ton that, thiét hai va chi phi phat sinh
trong qué trinh thwe hién nhiém vu cta ho. Quy téc ciing quy dinh vé viéc thanh toan phi Bao
hiém Trach nhiém ctia Ban Giam déc va Can bd, bao gébm cac hanh déng dwoc thwc hién mot
cach thién chi trong qua trinh thyc hién trach nhiém chinh thiec.

Trong ky bao céo, Co-operative da dam bao hop ddng Bao hiém Trach nhiém ctia Ban Giam déc
va Can bd dé& dam bao sw bao vé thich hop cho cac Giam dbc va Can bd clia minh lién quan dén
vai trd quan tri va quan ly cla ho.

Ngoai ra, Co-operative da thuc hién Chirng thw Bédo dam V6 hai theo quyén Ioi ctia mot sé Giam
déc, Thw ky va Can bd Diéu hanh trong qua khi va hién tai. Nhitng chirng thw nay cung cép,
trong pham vi phap luat cho phép, viéc ddm bao vo hai dbi v&i cac trach nhiém phéap ly phat sinh
véi tw cach la can bo clia Gascoyne Water Co-operative khi khéng cé quy dinh khac vé viéc bao
vé dé. Viéc dam bao vé hai cling bao gébm viéc hoan tra cac chi phi phap ly phat sinh dé dap tng
cac cudc diéu tra theo quy dinh va bao vé cac thu tuc t6 tung phat sinh tir viéc thwe hién nhiém
vu cua ho.



Directors’ Benefits

Ngoai trir khodn thu lao dworc tiét 16 duwdi day va trong Thuyét minh 25, khéng c6 Giam dbc nao
cla Co-operative nhan dwoc hoadc co quyén nhan bét ky lgi ich nao khac. Hon nira, khéng co
hop ddng nao duoc ky két gitra Co-operative va:

e bét ky Giam dbc nao;

e Dbétky td chirc ndo do mét Giam dbc nao dé kiém soat; hodc

e Dbatky td chirc nao ma moét Giam dbc nao dé ndm gilr loi ich tai chinh dang ké.

Directors’ Interests
Loi ich ciia Ban Giam déc dbi véi vén ¢ phan cla Co-operative ké tir ngay 30 thang 6 nam 2024

dwoc néu chi tiét duwsi day. S6 dang ky Co phiéu GWC dworc lwu gitv chinh thirc tai van phong
GWC, theo quy dinh ctia Muc 230(1)(a) ctia Dao luat Co-operative 2009 (WA).

Tén Giam déc Cb phiéu Hang A
Hang ~ C
Co phiéu
Ong Domenico Condo 500 160
Ong Paul Shain 500 72
Ong Anthony Vrankovich 500 54
Ong Saxon Boston 500 770
(Forrest va Forrest)
Ong Nic Cuthbert Khoéng Khoéng

Thu lao cho Giam déc

Viéc thay déi thu lao Giam dbc da dwoc cac Thanh vién phé duyét tai Dai hoi dong cb6 déng
thwdng nién dwoc té chirc vao ngay 15 thang 11 ndm 2022. Can lwu y rang cac khoan déng gop
hwu béng trudc day da dwoc thanh toan ngoai phi Giam déc co ban. Thu lao 4p dung cho tirng
vi tri, ca trwdc va sau cac thay doéi da dwoc phé duyét, dwoc néu dudi day:

Vi tri Trwéc DPHDCDTN Sau DPHDCDTN
2022 2022

Cha tich $8,000 $20,000

Giam dbc la Thanh $6,000 $15,000

vién Hoi ddng Quan

tri

Giam déc Khéng la $25,000 $25,000
Thanh vién Hoi

déng Quan tri

Bang duwéi day cho thdy phi Giam dbc dwoc trd cho ngwdi ddm nhan tirng vi tri Giam dbc trong
nam tai chinh 2023-2024. Lwu y rang moét sé Giam Ddc dadm nhan cac vi tri khac nhau va thoi
gian cho tirng vi tri cling nhw cac khoan phi dwoc tra dwoc liét ké nhw sau:



Tén Giam déc
doc

Ong Rodney Sweetman

Giam dbc 1a

Thanh vién Hoi ddng Quan tri

Ong Domenico Condo

Cha tich

Giam déc la

Thanh vién Hoi ddng Quan tri

Ong Paul Shain
Ba Linda Lyall

Ong Denis Durmanich
Ong Anthony
Vrankovich Ong Saxon
Boston

Ong Nic Cuthbert

Ong David Linder
Patten

Ban Giai quyét Tranh chap

Cha tich

Thei gian

01.07.2023 - 01.09.2023
01.07.2023 -01.09.2023
01.07.2023 -30.06.2024
01/09/2023 - 30.06.2024

Giam dbc la Thanh vién Hoi ddng Quan — tri

30.06.2024

$15,000.00

Giam déc la Thanh vién Hoi déng Quan — tri

30.07.2023

Giam dbéc 14
Thanh vién Hoi
déong Quan tr
Giam dbéc la
Thanh vién Hoi
déong Quan tr
Giam dbéc la
Thanh vién Hoi
ddng Quan tri

Giam dbc Khoéng la
Thanh vién Hoi dong
Quan tri Giam dbc
Khéng 1a Thanh vién

Ho6i ddng Quan tri

$ 3,750.00

01.07.2023 - 30.06.2023
02.10.2023 - 30.06.2024

14.04.2023 - 30.06.2024
01.07.2022 - 30.06.2023
23/04/2024 - 30.06.2024

Lam Giam

$3,333.34
$2,500.00
$15,000.00
$16,666.67

01.07.2023

01.07.2023

$15,000.00
$11.250.00
$ 4,375.00
$13,172.02
$ 1,040.93

Tuan thd Quy dinh 98.1, Ban Giai quyét Tranh chap dwoc bd nhiém tai cudc hop clha Dai hoi
ddng Cb dong Thuong nién 2023, bao gbm 7 thanh vién. Ban Giai quyét Tranh chap bao gom 2
Giam dbc va 5 thanh vién khong phai 1a Giam dbc. 5 thanh vién dwoc bd nhiém vao Ban Giai
quyét Tranh chap 12 Wayne Rowe, Stan Kostanich, Kevin Sullivan, Robert Kuzmicich va Glen

Skender.

Ban Thw ky Cong ty

Ban Thu ky Cong ty da dwgc ddm nhan bdi ba ngudi cé trinh d6 trong ky béo cao.



Ban Thw ky Céng ty Nhiém  ky

Ong Dennis Wade 01.07.2023 - 13.03.2024
Ashleigh Barr 14.05.2024 - 30.06.2024
Brenda Van Rensburg 13.03.2024 - 14.05.2024

Tha tuc t6 tung

Vao ngay 30 thang 6 nam 2024, GWC da dat dwoc théa thuan véi mét nha cung cp dich vu ci.
Vu viéc van tiép tuc gitra cac bén khac.

Mot cudce kiém toan ndi bd ddc 1ap da dwoc hoan thanh va GWC dang thyc hién cac khuyén nghi
dé cai thién va tim kiém 16i khuyén vé cac budc tiép theo lién quan dén két qua bao céo.



Tinh dén thang 3 ndm 2024, GWC van chwa bat dau bat ky tha tuc phap Iy ndo. GWC ¢6 tranh
chép hop ddng dang dién ra véi mdt nha san xuét co s& ha ting ma ho hy vong sé dwoc gidi
quyét ma khoéng can tha tuc t6 tung cla toa an.

5. VAN HANH

Nhan vién GWC - ngay 1 thang 7 nam 2023 va ngay 30 thang 6 nam 2024

Alexandra Bell 2.10.2023 - 30.06.2024 $131,548.72
Brenda Van Rensburg 11.12.2023 — 05.06.2024 $46,769.84
Christina Wong 01.07.2023 — 17.07.2023 $250.00
Jude Berry 01.07.2023 — 14.07.2023 $16,499.96
Lauren Surmon 17.02.2024 — 24.04.2024 $629.16
Lisa Sweetman 11.12.2023 — 30.06.2024 $43,180.05
Marija Vrankovich 09.10.2023 — 30.06.2024 $53,551.10
Noleen Fraser 01.07.2023 — 11.10.2023 $10,292.85
Rachael Third 01.07.2023 — 22.11.2023 $8,305.20
Robert Lunnon 01.07.2023 - 11.10.2023 $4,108.88
Toéng $315,270.76

Cac nha cung cép dich vu

Bén kiém toan Australian Audit Pty Ltd

Té chirc ngan hang Ngan hang ANZ - Carnarvon
Cong ty mdi gi¢i bao hiém Oracle Group

Cb van phap ly Addisons Solicitors

Hoat déng chinh

Trong ky bao cao, cacoperative’s principal hoat dong clia Gascoyne Water Co-operative bao
gom:
e Giam sat va quan ly viéc cung cap nuéc tudi khdng dung cho sinh hoat cho ndng dan
GWC va khach hang clia Coral Coast Water trong Khu Vwc Carnarvon Irrigation Area.
Thyce hién cac nghia vu hoat ddng va quy dinh, bao gE‘)m:
e Tuan thd Chién Iwoc Van hanh Northern Borefield®  Bao
tri Hé théng Quan ly Tai san
e Cung cép dich vu theo Hop ddng Dich vu vé&i Gascoyne Water Asset Mutual Co-operative
Ltd



e Lap va ndp bao céo tuan tha phu hop véi yéu ciu hang thang, hang quy, sau thang va
hang nam.

e Thwc hién giai doan xdy dwng Dw an Tang cwong va Hién dai héa Dy an Thay lgi
Gascoyne (GISAM), hé tro phét trién co s& ha tAng va dd tin cay cua dich vu.

Phi nwéc

Dwa trén tang trwdng doanh thu du kién tir Co-operativeoperative's expanding operations—va
dap lai phan hdi tlr cac Thanh vién, chéng toi vui mirng xac nhan rang tién nwéc van khong thay
ddi cho ndm nwdc 2024. Quyét dinh nay phan anh cam két clia chang t6i trong viéc mang lai gia
tri va sw 6n dinh chi phi cho cac Thanh vién, déng thdi hé tro mot cach cé trach nhiém sy tang
trwdng trong twong lai va ddm bdo tinh bén virng lau dai ctia Co-operative.

Phi GWC Murc gia
Phi ¢6 dinh 0.2022 xu méi kilélit dwoc phan bd
Dong gép thay déi 0.1122 xu méi kildlit dwoc giao

Phi GWAMCO Mdrc gia

DPong Gop Thay Thé Tai San 0.04081 xu méi kildlit dwoc phan bd
Thué $2,040.80 mdi nam médi mét

6. TAlI CHINH

Bé&o céo Tai chinh nam 2024 bj anh hwéng dang ké bdi dw an GISAM va tbn that do suy gidm
gia tri. Bang sau day phac thao I4i / (16) rong dwoc diéu chinh cho cac khodn muc nay:

2024 2023 2022
2021
Lai /(L6) rong trwée thué thu nhap (4,968,25) (312,828) (379,653) 232,775
Trir: Doanh thu GISAM (939,701) (981,722) (567,706) -

] 6,088,00 1,536,922 1,410,14
Coéng: Toén that do suy gidm gia tri 0 1 1 10,000

Lai / (L6) rong diéu chinh trwéc thué thu
nhap 180,044 242,371 462,782 42,775

Céc bién déng dang chu y trong cac khodn muc 13i va 16 bao gébm:

1. Tang doanh thu tw:
a. Hop déng Dich vu GWAMCO tri gia $79,862
b. Tang thu nhap tai chinh (14 va phan phéi) $48,428



2. Giam chi phi lién quan dén:
a. Bao tri, van hanh va hang tén kho $568,560
b. Chi phi tién lwong $295,923
3. Tang chi phi lién quan dén:
a. Twvan $181,290 va
b. Quan ly Hanh chanh $218,925

Céc bién dong dang chu y lién quan dén Bao c&o tinh hinh tai chinh bao gém:

1. Giam tién mat va tai san tai chinh do chi tiéu cho dw an GISAM

$4,185,338.

Chi phi vén $6,808,039 cho nadm tai chinh, phan 1&n trong sé d6 lién quan dén du an GISAM.

Tang cac khoan phai thu thwong mai va phai thu khac Ién $407,033

4. Tang cac tai san khac 1én $595,023, phan I&n trong sb d6 lién quan dén dot tai tro GISAM
cudi cung tri gia $620,000 nhan dwoc sau khi két thac nam.

5. Tang cac khoan phai tra thwong mai va phai tra khac 1én $319,999, phan I&n lién quan dén Dy
an GISAM.

@™

Vao ngay 30 thang 6 ndm 2024, thwc thé hop nhat cé sé dw vdn chi s& hiru am la $2,276,043
(2023: s6 dw dwong la $1,385,393) chi yéu do tén that do suy gidm gia tri bat dong san, nha
xwédng va thiét bi trong nam la $6,088,000. Ban Giam déc réng thuc thé hop nhat sé tiép tuc cd
kha nang thanh toan tat ca cac khodn ng va chi tiéu ctia minh khi dén han. Vao ngay 30 thang 6
nam 2024, tién mat dwoc nam gilr 1a $509,979 (2023: $4,315,369). Ban quan ly dang duv béo loi
nhuan hang ndm sé tré lai trong nam tai chinh tiép theo va do dé bao cdo tai chinh dwoc 1ap trén
co s& hoat dong lién tuc.

Bén kiém toan

Bé&o cdo tai chinh da dwoc kiém toan 1a mot thanh phan thiét yéu clia Bao cao thuwéng nién nay.
Phan trinh bay vé két qua kiém toan sé do Chassey Davids thudc Co quan Kiém toan Uc trinh
bay va cac Thanh vién dwoc khuyén khich tich cwc tham gia phién hop dé hiéu rd hon

of GWC's financial performance and position.

Céc thanh vién ciing duwoc khuyén khich xem xét Bao cao Tai chinh Thwéong nién chi tiét va gl
bat ky cau hdi hodc thdc mac nao cho kiém toan vién. V&i tw cach la ngudi dwoc bd nhiém doc
lap ctia cac Thanh vién, kiém toan vién dueopeddive gifingrésal gtatrroda Co-operative, dua ra
dam béo doc lap véi Hoi dong quan tri va Ban quan ly
ciing nhw cling cb tinh minh bach va trach nhiém giai trinh trong bao céo tai chinh.

Cé tirc, Phan phéi, Quyén chon mua va Cé phiéu M&i

Trong ndm, Gascoyne Water Co-operative (GWC) da khong chia cb tirc cho cac thanh vién cta
minh. La mét cdng ty chwa niém yét, GWC da khong phat hanh bat ky quyén chon nao dbi véi cb
phiéu hodc lgi ich chwa phat hanh cho bat ky Giam dbc hodc Can bd ndo trong nam hodc ké tir
khi két thuc ndm. Bao cdo nay duoc trinh bay theo nghi quyét da dwoc Ban Giam déc théng qua.



6. CAC SU KIEN XAY RA SAU NGAY LAP BAO CAO & DIEN
BIEN TRONG TUWONG LAl

Ban Lanh dao va Quan tri H6i dong Quan tri

Vao thang 10 ndm 2024, 6ng Domenico Condo da nghi hwu khai vi tri Cha tich H6i ddng Quan
tri, sau nhiéu nam cbng hién hét minh cho Gascoyne Water Co-operative (GWC). Hoi ddng Quan
tri bay td sw cdm kich chan thanh dbi véi nhivng déng gép clia 6ng Condo trong nhiém ky cutia
minh. Sau khi 6ng nghi hwu, Héi ddng quan tri d& nhét tri bau 6éng Paul Shain lam Chu tich maéi.
Ong Shain mang dén mot

understanding of the organisation’s strategic priorities and is committed to leading the Co-
hoat ddng thédng qua giai doan phat trién va chuyén déi tiép theo.

Trong ddng thai tdng cwéng quan tri va tang cudng ra quyét dinh chién lwoc, Hoi ddng Quan tri
hoan nghénh viéc bd nhiém hai Giam dbc khéng phai la thanh vién cia Hoi ddng Quan tri. Ca hai
ca nhan déu mang lai

experience from the finance sector, further diversifying the Board's skill set andimching minh
kha nang giam sat hiéu qua tai chinh, quan ly rdi ro va lap ké hoach dai han. Nhirng
appointments support GWC’s ongoing commitment to strong governance and financial

trach nhiém quan ly

Co cau T6 chirc va Cai tién Hoat dong

Céc hoat dong hanh chinh clia Gascoyne Water Co-operative da duoc té chirc lai chién luoc

dé nang cao hiéu qua va kha nang thich &ng. Co ciu t6 chirc duwgc sap xép hop ly, cho phép
nhém Dich vu Doanh nghiép bao gébm céac —nhan vién lanh nghé, cé ngudn gbc dia —
phwong quan ly cac chirc nang hang ngay hiéu qua hon. Mé hinh hoat déng tinh gon hon nay
responsiveness, reduced overheads, and reinforced GWC’s commitment to regional

da dworc cai thién

viéc 1am va phat trién néng luc.

Dé& dam bao tuan tha lién tuc va ap dung cai tién lién tuc trong toan té chirc, mot Hé théng
Quan ly Chét lwong (QMS) toan dién da dwoc trién khai. QMS bao gdm céc linh vwe chinh
bao gébm Quan ly Tai san, Bao cdo Quy dinh, Nghia vu Tuan thu, Strc khde va An toan Nghé
nghiép (OHS) va Kiém soat Tai liéu. Hé théng nay cung cap mét khudn khd coé cau tric dé
duy tri chat lwong, dap (ng cac yéu cau lap phap va thuc day van héa trach nhiém giai trinh.

Rui ro, Kiém toan va Dw an Chién lwoc

Trong ky bao cao, mét cudc kiém toan ndi bd doc lap da dwoc hoan thanh dé danh gia cac
bién phap kiém soat clia td chirc, thuc tién tuan thd va hé thdng quan Iy rdi ro. Cudc kiém
toan hién da dwoc hoan tat va dang duwoc cac chuyén gia tw van doc lap xem xét chi tiét. Két
qua sé& cung cap théng tin cho nhirng cai tién trong twong lai va 1ap ké hoach chién luoc.

Bao hiém Trach nhiém cla Ban Giam dbc va Can bo da dwoc ap dung cho nam tai chinh
2023/2024 va da dugc gia han cho nam 2025/2026, cung cép sw bao vé lién tuc cho cac thanh
senior management. This coverage underscores GWC'’s commitment to responsible

vién Hoi dong Quan tri va

quan tri va gidm thiéu rdi ro.

Cong viéc tham do tiép tuc vé tinh kha thi cGa viéc chuyén déi Gascoyne Water Co-operative
va Gascoyne Water Asset Mutual Co-operative thanh mét cAu tric phap nhan duy nhat. Danh



gia chién lwoc nay



dang dién ra, v&i cac tac dong phap ly, hoat ddng va cac bén lién quan dang dwoc xem xét can
than.

Diém ndi bat vé Hoat dong va Tai chinh

Trong twong lai, Sang kién Gascoyne Food Bowl Initiative (GFBI) sé dwoc hoan thanh véi viéc bat
dau cac két ndi mai du kién vao thang 4 ndm 2025. Cot mbc nay phan anh

continued growth in the region and GWC'’s essential role in supporting agricultural

sw phat trién

Trong hoat déng tai chinh, hanh déng quyét dinh da dwoc thuc hién dé giai quyét cac khoan
phai thu qua han. Théng qua cac chién lvoc thu no dwoc cai thién va sy tham gia ctia thanh
vién, 68% tai khoan qua han da dwoc khdi phuopembwdagasinfmé and financial sustainnang
Iwe.

8. BAO CAO TAI CHINH THWONG NIEN
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Gascoyne Water Co-gperative Limited and Controlled Entitios
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Revenue

Sales revenus

Other Revenue

Water Charges

Expenses

Payroll expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Consultants

Writeback / (Loss) on debts writlen off
impairment loss

Maintenance, operations and inventory
Administration expenses

Finance coslts

Profit / {loss) before Income tax
Income tax sxpenses

Profit I {loss) for the year

Other comprehensive Income

items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

Revaluation increment - managed nvestment
Totai comprehenslve income for the year

Profit for the year is atiributable to:
Members of the parent entity

Total comprehensive income for the year is atiributable to:
Members of tha parent entity

Note

Al

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $

3,848,106 3,709,885 4,220,687 3,430,248
1,020,197 1,105,341 4,084,828 1,117,128
(2,468,932} (1,756,183} (2,450,670} (1,737,822)
(388,480) (684,403) {388,480) (684,403)
(4,744) {7.246) {4,744) (7,248)
{210,463) {29,173} {210,463} {29,173)
(10,557) 1,060 {10,557} 1,060
(6,088,000) (1,536,921} (6,088,000} (1,536921)
{144,828) (713,388) (144,828) (712,012)
{620,169) (401,244) (618,234) (400,367}
(385) {556) {280) (556)
(4,968,265) (312,828)  (4,610,643) {560,064)
1,278,846 (109,883} 1,278,846 {109,863)
(3,689,410) (422,601)  {3,331,798) (669,927)
- 5,831 - 5,931
- 5,931 - 5,831
{3,689,410)  (422,601)  (3,331,798) {669,927)
{3,689,410) (422,6801) (3,331,798} (669,927)
- 5,931 - 5,931
- 5,831 - 5,931

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements




Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and Controlled Entitles

Statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2024

Note
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7
Trade and other receivables 8
Invantories 9
Financlal assats al fair vaiue though profit or loss 11
Financlal assets at amortised cost t2
Cther assats 10
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets 12
Property, plant and equipment 14
Right-of-use assets 15
Intangible assets 16
Deferred fax assels 17
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18
Contract llabilities 19
Provisions 20
Borrowings 22
Lease llabilities 21
GF81 Funds Held in Trust 23
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 22
t ease Habilities 21
Daferred tax liabilities 47
TOTAL NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
fssued capital 24

Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

Consolidated Group Parant Entlty
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
509,579 4,315,368 145,080 3,770,748
670,797 283,764 798,035 274,191
194,470 161,470 191,470 191,470
" 307,336 - 307,338
81,055 153,668 81,056 153,668
777,358 182,333 918,571 249,186
2,230,657 5,413,939 2,134,211 4,946,697
. 1 1
715,295 715,285
1,681,479 147,634 1,581,478 147,634
2,298,774 147,634 2,296,775 147,635
4,627,431 5,561,573 4,430,886 5,004,232
1,078,604 758,605 1,086,918 761,888
- 318,701 . 319,701
16,428 6,043 18,426 8,043
- . 1,748
9,522 8,891 9,622 8,891
1,104,452 1,093,140 1,112,867 1.088,271
5,542,708 3,042,708 6,542,706 3,042,708
30,812 40,334 30,812 40,334
155,000 165,000
6,728,518 3,083,040 5,728,618 3,083,040
8,832,870 4,176,180 8,841,385 4,171,311
{2,305,539) 1,385,303 (2,410,399 922,921
90,630 92,152 91,480 93,002
{2,398,169) 1,203,241 (2,501,878) 529,919
{2,305,538) 1,385,363  (2,410,399) 8§22 921

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Retained

Ordinary Shares Earnings Total
Note $ $ $
Consolldated Group
Bafance at 1 July 2022 81,152 1,710,001 1,801,153
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - {422,691) {422,691)
Other comprehensive income for the year 11 - 5,031 5,931
Shares issued during ths year 24 4,500 - 4,500
Shares brought-back during the year 24 {3,500} - {3,500)
Balance at 30 June 2023 82,152 1,283,241 1,385,393
Balance at 1 July 2023 82,152 1,293,241 1,385,383
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - {3,689,410) (3,680,410)
Shares Issued during the year 24 2,500 - 2,500
Shares brought-back during the year 24 {4,022} - {4,022}
Balance at 30 June 2024 80,630 (2,396,169) {2,306,539)
Ordinary Shares ::::::gg Total
$ $ $
Parent Entity
Batance at {1 July 2022 82,002 1,493,915 1,685 817
Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year - {669,827) (669,927)
Olher comprehensive income for the year i1 - 5,931 5,931
Shares issued during the year 24 4,500 - 4,500
Shares brought-back during the year 24 {3,500) - (3,500)
Balance at 30 June 2023 93,002 829,919 922,821
Balance at {1 July 2023 83,002 829,919 922,921
Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year - {3,331,788) (3,331,798}
Shares issued during tha year 24 2,500 - 2,500
Shares brought-back during the year 24 (4,022) - (4,022)
Baiance at 30 June 2024 91,480 {2,501,879) (2,410,399)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial stalements




Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and Controlled Entitles

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recaipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest recoived

Interest paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from financial assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Payments for financial assets al fair value through profit or loss

Met cash provided byf(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

Share buy-back payment

Proceeds from horrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of lease llabllifies

Dividends paid to parent entity

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activilies

Net increasef{decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financlal year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

Consolidated Group Paront Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note $ $ $ $
3,586,657 4,844 067 3,248,039 4,478,701
{3,521,315) (3,046,399)  {3,485,988) {3,030,821)
71,366 13,377 55,921 9,067
(385) {556} (280) {556)
27 136,223 1,810,488 {182,3086) 1,458,381
(6,808,039} (1,544,187)  (6,808,039) (1,544,187)
72,613 74,916 72,613 74,016
307,336 - 307,336 -
- {300,000) - {300,000)
(6,428,090) (1,769,251)  {6,428,080) (1.769,251)
2,500 4,500 2,800 4,500
(4,022) (3,500) {4,022} (3.500)
2,500,000 - 2,500,000 1,748
- . (1,748) -
{12,000) {12,000} {12,000) {12,000}
- - 500,000
2,488,478 {11,000) 2,984,730 (9.252)
(3,805,389) 30,238 {3,625,666) {322,122)
4,316,368 4,285 130 3,770,746 4,092,868
7 500,979 4,315,368 145,080 3,770,748

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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This financial report covers Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and its controlled entities ('the Group'). Gascoyne Water
Co-operative Limited and Controlled Entities is a for-profit Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia,

Each of the entities within the Group prepare their financlat statements based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {functional currency), The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the parent entity's funclional and presentation currency.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 28 March 2025.
Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.
1 Basls of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial staternents that have been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards and the Co-operatives Act 2609. The Group is a for-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements except for cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment properlies, certain classes of property,
plant and equipment and derivative financial instruments. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest dollar.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)  Basis for consolldation

The consolidated financial statements Incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of the Parent (Gascoyne Water
Co-operative Ltd) and all of the subsidiaries (including any structured entities). Subsidiaries are entities the Parent controls,
The Parant controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from ils involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. A list of controlied entities is contained In Note 13 to
the financial statements.

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financlal statements of the Group from the
date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a subsidiary is discontinued from the date that contro!
ceases. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on fransactions between Group entities are
fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed and adjustments made where
necessary to ensure uniformity of the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Equily interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group are presented as "Non-confrolling
interests’. The Group initially recognises non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests in subsidiaries and are
entitled to a proportionate share of the subsidiary's net assets on lquidation at either fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the subsidiary's net assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-controfling interests are
attributed their share of profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income. Non-controlling interests are
shown separately within the equity section of the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income.

(b} Income Tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changas in deferred tax assets and liabilities aftributable to temporary
differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences al the tax rates expected to be applied when the
assetls are recovered or liabilities are settied, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, except for:
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. When the deferred income tax assel or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or Hiability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profits; or

. When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, asscciates or joint ventures, and
the timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foraseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if It is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date, Deferred tax
assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxabie profits will be available for the
carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there are future taxable profits avallable to recover the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset only where there is a legally enforceabile right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilifes and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilites; and they relate to the same taxable authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to setile simultaneously.

Gascoyne Water Co-Operative Limited {the 'head entity’) and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an
income tax consolidated group under the tax consolidation regime. The head entity and each subsidiary In the tax
consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The tax consolidated group has
applied the 'separate taxpayer within group' approach In determining the appropriate amount of taxes to allccate to members
of the tax consolidated group.

tn addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises the current tax liabifities (or assets)
and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from each subsidiary in the tax
consolidated group.

Assels or liabiiities arising under tax funding agresments with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
recelvable from or payable o other entities in the tax consolidatad group. The tax funding arrangement ensures that the
intercompany charge equals the current tax liability or benefit of each tax consolidated group member, resulting in neither a
contribution by the head eniity to the subsidiaries nor a distribution by the subsidiaries to the head entity,

(c) Gurrent and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be reslised or intended to be sold or consumed in the Group's
normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it Is expected to be realised within 12 months after the
reporting period; or the asset Is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used {o settle a liability
for at feast 12 months after the reporting period, All other assels are classifiad as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be setlled in the Group's normal operating cycle; it is held
primarily for the purpose of trading; R is due to be setiled within 12 months after the reporting pericd; or there is no
unconditionat right to defer the setllemant of the lfabllity for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Al other liabilities
are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
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(d)  Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Group: identifies the
contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determinaes the transaction price which takes
into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money: allocates the fransaction price o the separate
performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered;
and recognises ravenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in & manner that depicts the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services promised.

variable consideration within the transaclion price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts,
rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the custerner and any other contingent events. Such estimales
are determined using either the 'expacted valug' or 'most fikely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration
is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue racognised will not occur. The measurement consfraint continues
until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received thal are subject
{0 the constraining principle are recognised as a refund liability.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer abtains control of the goods, which is
ganerally at the tme of delivery.

Interest

interest revenus is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calcutating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest
rate, which Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset{o
the nel carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend revenue
Dividends are recognised when the entity’s right o receive payment is astablished.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to recelve payment Is established.

(e) Finance costs

Finance costs altributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset.
All other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

{H Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amouint of geods and services tax (GST), except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Recelvables and payables are stated inclusive of GST raceivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the tax authorily is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position,

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which is recoverabte from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating
cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority.
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{g) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined using the weighted
average costs basls and is net of any rebates and discounts received. Net realisable value is eslimated using the most
relisble evidence available at the reporiing date and inventory is written down through an obsolescence provision if
necessary.

th}  Property, plant and equipment

Each class of properly, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

Land and bulldings

Land and bulldings are measured using the revaluation model. Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaiuation of
land and buitdings are credited to a revaluation surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are recoghised against revaluation surplus directly in equily; alt other decreases are recognised in profit or foss.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is efiminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated o the revalued amount of the asset.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount
and impairment losses recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease If the impairment losses relate to a
revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an
appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the financial perlod in
which they are incurred.

Depreclation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's ussful life to
the Group, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreclable amount of all fixed assels including bulldings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freshold land, is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the Group commencing from the time the asset is held
ready for use. Leasahold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful lives of the improvemenits.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted I appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An assel's carrying amount Is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
recognised In profit or loss when the item is derecognised. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the
revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transfarred to retained earnings.
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Flxed asset class

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset is reviewed.
Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

{)] Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the cormmencemert date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease paymenis made at or before the
commencament date net of any lease incentives recelved, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the
cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantiing and removing the underlying asset, and
restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-fine basis over the unexpired period of the [ease or the estimated usefut life
of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the Group expects {0 obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the depreciation Is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabililies.

The Group has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with
terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assels. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss
as incurred.

{)] Investments and other financial assets

Investments and other financial assels are initialty measured at fair value. Transaction costs are Included as part of the initial
measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such assets are subsequently measured at
aither amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification, Classificaion is determined based on both the business
model within which such assets are held and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset unless an
accounting mismatch is being avoided.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recelve cash fiows have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering part or all of a financial asset, it's carrying value is written off.

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost or at falr value through other comprehsnsive income are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Typically, such financial assets will be elther: (i} held for trading, where
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the short-term with an intention of making a profit, or a derivative; or (i)
designated as such upon initial recognition where permitied. Fair value movements are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial agsets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income include equity investments which the Group intends to
hoid for the foreseeable future and has irrevocably elected to classify them as such upon initial recognition.

impalment of financial assels

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon
the Group's assessmant at the end of each reporting period as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has increased
significantly since initlaf recognition, based on reasonable and supportable information that is available, without undue cost
or effort to obtain.

Where there has not been a significant increase in exposuire to credit risk since initial recognition, & 12-month expected
credit loss allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit tosses that is attributable
to a default event that is possible within the next 12 months, Where a financial asset has become ¢redit impaired or where it
is determined that credit risk has Increased significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifstime expected credit
losses. The amount of expected credit loss recognised is measured on the basis of the probablfity weighted present value of
anticipated cash shortfalis over the life of the instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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For financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through other comprahensive income, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding expense through profit o loss. In all other cases, the loss
aliowance reduces the asset's carrying value with a corresponding expense through profit or loss.

(k) Fair value measurement

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair
value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take placa either: in the
principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

Falr value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its
highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
avallable to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs,

Asgels and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inpuis used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and
transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement,

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not
available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledgs and
reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is
undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the lates! valuation and a comparison, where
applicable, with externat sources of data.

()] impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is any evidence of an impalrment indicator for
non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yat available
for use, the recoverable amount of tha asset is estimated.

Where assels do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-generaling unit
(CGLY is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value In use. Value
in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit,

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment foss Is recognised in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an Impairment loss, except for
goodwill.
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{m)} Intangibles
Software

Software has a finite life and s carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. It has an estimated
useful life of between one and five years.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basls over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other
than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residuat values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
{n)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financlal ingtitutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible o known amounts of cash and
which are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value, For the statemant of cash flows pregentation purposes, cash
and cash equivalents also includes bank overdrafts, which are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement

of financial position.

{o) Trade and other recelvables

Trade recelvables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest
method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.
The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring expecled credit losses, which uses a lifelime expected loss
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognlsed at amorised cost, fess any allowance for expected credlt losses,

{p} Contract assets

Contract assets are recognised when the consolidated entity has transferred goods or services {o the customer buf where the
consolidated entity is yet to establish an unconditional right to consideration. Confract assets are treated as financial assels
for impairment purposes.

{(q) Employee benefits

Shont-term employee benefils

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months of the reporing date are measured at the amounts expected fo be paid when the llabliitles
are setiled.

Other long-term employee benefits

The fability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be setiled within 12 months of the reporting date are
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by empioyees up to
the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given {o expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows.

{n Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a resuit of past events, for which it is
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probable that an cutflow of aconomic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best astimate of the outfiow required to settle the obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the unwinding of the discount
is taken to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and othar comprehensive income.

(s) Contract Liabllities

Contract fiabilities represent the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services 10 a customer and are recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or when the Group recegnises a receivable to reflect its unconditional right to consideration
{whichever Is earlier) before the Group has transferred the goods or services to the customer.

t Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year and
which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature, they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts
are ungecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

() Borrowlings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

] Lease liabilitles

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is
reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The vartable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease fiabiliies are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if
there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual
guarantes, lease term; cerlainty of a purchase oplion and termination penalties. When a lease liability ts remeasured, an
adjustment is made 1o the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is fully written down.

(w}  New or Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations Adopted

The Group has adopted ali of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations lssusd by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting pericd.

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted,

(x)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet Mandatory or Early Adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that nave recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory,
have not been early adopted by the Group for the annuat reporting period ended 30 June 2024. The Group has not yet
assessed the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.
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(v} Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts In the financial statements. The directors continually evaluate their judgements and estimates in
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. The directors base thelr judgements, estimates and
assumplions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, the directors
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the
related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities (refer to the respaclive notes) within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit insses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. Itis based on the
lifatime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit
loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience, historical collection rates and forward-looking
information that is available. The allowance for expecled credit losses, as disclosed in note 8, is caloulated based onthe
information avallable at the time of preparation. The aciual credit losses in future years may be higher or lowar,

Revenue from contracls with customers involving sale of goods

When recognising revenue in refation o the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Group Is
considered to be the point of defivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer
abtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The Group is required o classify alf assets and liabllities, measured at fair value, using a three leve! hierarchy, based on the
lowest lavel of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being: Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in
active markats for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; Level 2! Inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Hiabllity, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3
Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Considerable judgement is required to determine what Is significant to fair value
and therefore which category the asset or liability is pfaced in can be subjective,

The fair value of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 is determined by the use of valuation modsls. These include
discounted cash flow analysis or the use of observable inputs that require significant adjustments basad on unobservable
inputs,

Estimation of useful lives of assefs

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and finite iife intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are Jess than previously
estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written
down,

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets

The Group assesses lmpairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets at each
reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. if an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal
or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumplions.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement Is required In
determining the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculatfons undertaken during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audil issues based on the Group's current understanding of the tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the carrying amounts, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.



Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and Controlled Entities
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Recovery of deferred fax assels

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Group considers it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Lease term

The lease lerm is a significant component in the measurement of both the right-of-use asset and lease liability. Judgement is
exercised in determining whether there is reasonable certainty that an option to extend the lease or purchase the undetlying
asset will be exercised, or an option to terminale the lease will not be exercised, when ascertaining the periods to be
included in the lease term, In determining the lease term, all facts and clrcumstances that create an economical incentive o
exercise an extension option, or nol to exercise a termination option, are considered at the lease commencement date.
Factors considered may include the importance of the asset to the Group's operations; comparison of terms and conditions
to prevailing market rates; incurrence of significant penaltles; exislence of significant teasehold improvements; and the costs
and disruption to replace the asset. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,
o1 not exercise a termination option, If there is a significant event or significant change In circumstances.

Incremental borrowing rate

Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate Is estimated to
discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease llability at the lease commencement date, Such a
rate is based on what the Group estimates it would have to pay a third parly to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, security and economic environment.

Employes benefifs provision

As discussed in note 2, the liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting
date are recognised and measursd at the present value of the estimated fulure cash flows to be made in respect of ail
employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attritton rates and pay
Increases through promotion and infiation have been taken into account.
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Note 3 Revenue and Other Income

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
Sales revenue
- Revenue from viater sales 3,331,332 3,227,297 3,068,914 2,904,477
- GWAMCO service agreameant 537,708 457,844 537,706 457,844
- Other trading revenus 8,496 600 54,496 48,104
3,875,534 3,685,741 3,662,116 3,410,425
Finance Income
- Interest received 64,739 21,977 50,738 17,666
- Interest received - Managed Invesiments 722 282 722 262
- Distributions - Managed Investmants 7411 1,805 7411 1,805
- Dividend income - - 500,000 -
72,572 24,144 558,671 19,823
Total revenue from sales 3,848,108 3,709,885 4,220,687 3,430,248
Cther income
- Shere sale revenue 77,100 121,740 514 .
- GISAM Funding 939,701 881,722 936,701 98,722
- Water Corporation on Sale Fee - . 144,215 133,627
- Rebates and refunds - - - -
- Profit ca sale of invesiments 3,396 3,396

1,879 1,879

- Staff Housing - Rent & Variables . -
1,020,197 1,105,341 1,084,826 1,117,128

Note 4 Expenses

Profit bafore income fax from continuing operations included the following specific expenses:

Gonsolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note $ $ $ $
Expenses
Accounting and Legal Feas
- General accounting and tax 55,210 46,825 55,210 46,825
- Addilional one off services 60,538 40,751 60,538 40,751
- Legal Fees 115,504 89,144 89,144 89,144
231,262 176,720 204,892 176,720
Finance costs
- Interest paid 385 - 280 -
385 - 280 -
Impalrment loss

- Property, plant and equipment 14 8,088,000 1,536,921 6,088,000 1,538,921
6,088,000 1,536,921 6,088,000 1,538,821

Depraclation and amortisation expense

- Properiy, plant and equipment 14 ! 4,744 7,248 4,744 7,246
- Right-of-use asset 15 . . . .
- Intangible assels (computer softwara) 16 - - . .
4,744 7,248 4,744 7.246
Leases
- Interest expense on lease liabililes 3,109 3,699 3,109 3,688

3,109 3,699 3,109 3.699
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Nots 5 Income Tax Expense

(a) Reconciliation of income tax to accounting profil:

Profit from ordinary aclivities
Applicable tax rate
Prima facie tax payable on ordinary activities
Add:
Tax effect of
- Temporary differences

Less:
Tax effect of

- Other allowable ems
Income lax expense

CURRENT
Income tax payabla

Note 8 Auditor's Remuneration

Remuneralion of the audilor of the parent entity for:
- Auditing or reviewing the financial slatements

Note 7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT
Cash at bank and on hand - Unrestricted
Cash at bank and on hand - Raestricted

Consolidated Group

Parant Entity

2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ §
(4,088,255} (312,828) (4,610,643} {5e0,084)
25.00% 25.00% 25.00% 25.00%
(1,242,064) (78,207)  (1,152,661) (140,016}
{36,781} 188,071 {126,184) 249,880
{36,781) 188,071 {126,184) 249,880
(1,278,845) 109,863  (4,278,845) 169,863
Consolidated Group Parant Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $

Consolidated Group

Parant Entity

2024 2023 2024 2023
§ § $ $
18,520 14,030 14,030 14,030
18,520 14,030 14,030 14,030

Congolldated Group

2024 2023
$ §
509,979 3,996,867
- 319,701

Parent Entlty

2024 2023
§ $
145,080 3,451,044
- 318,701

509,979 4,315,368

145,080 3,770,748

2023 Restricled funds relals fo contract fiabiities. Refer to Nole 19 for further detail.

The effective inlerest rate on short-term bank deposils was 4.02% (2023 4.05%).

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the statement of cash flows, is reconciled o items In the statement of financial position as

follows:
Cash and cash equivalenis

509,979 4,315,358

145,080 3,770,746

509,979 4,315,388

145,080 3,770,746

A floaling charge over cash and cash equivalents has been provided for certain debl. Refer to Note 22 for further detall.
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Note 8 Trade and Other Recelvables
CURRENT
Trada receivables

Provision for impairment

Other receivables
Total current trade and other receivablas

{a) Altowance for expacted credit losses

Consolldated Group Parant Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
605,608 249,037 720,764 248,606
{30,000) {30,000} (30,000) (39,000}
575,808 219,037 690,764 218,806
94,989 44,727 167,271 57,585
670,797 263,764 788,035 274,191

In 2023, the group recognised a reversal of unused amounts of $25,346 in profit or loss in respect of the expecled credit losses for the year ended 30 June 2023.

There was no movement for the year ended 30 June 2024,

The ageing of the receivables and allowance for expected credit losses provided for above are as follows:

Consolidated - 2024

Not overduse
0 to 3 months overdue
Over 3 months overdue

Consolidated - 2023

No! overdue
0 to 3 months overdue
Cver 3 months overdue

Movements In the alfowance for expacted credit losses are as foliows:

Consolidated

Opening bafance

Additional provisions recognised

Receivables wrilten off during the year as uncollectable
Unused amounts reversed

Closing balance

Expected credit
loss rate 2024

%
0.0%
0.0%
8.8%

Expected credit
loss rate 2023

%
0.0%
6.5%
35.6%

Carryling amount

Altowance far
expected credit

2024 fogses 2024
$ $
118,388 -
148,338 -
344,102 30,000
605,808 30,000

Carrying amount
2023

Allowance for
expected credit

105866 2023
$ $
34,929 .
129,887 -
84,221 30,000
249,037 30,000
2024 2023
$ $
30,000 31,060
10,557 -
{10,567) -
. (1,060}
30,000 30,000
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Note 8 Trade and Other Receivables (Cont}

Parent - 2024

Not overdue
0 to 3 months overdue
Over 3 months overdus

Parent - 2023

Not overdue
0 to 3 months overdug
Over 3 months overdue

Maovemenis in the allowance for expected credit losses are as follows:

Parent

Opening balance

Additional provisions recognised

Recaivables wrilten off during tha year as uncollectable
Unused amounts reversed

Closing halance

Note 8 inventorles

CURRENT
At cosi:
Consumables

Note 10 Other Assets

CURRENT
Prepayments
Accrued income
Contract Asgets

Expectod credit

Carrying amount

Allowance for
expected credit

loss rate 2024 2024 lossas 2024
% $ §
0.0% 286,827 .
0.0% 130,893 -
9.3% 323,244 30,000
720,784 30,000
Expected credit Carrylng amount eizgzzzc:r:::t
ioss rate 2023 2023 lossas 2023
% $ 5
0.0% 34,909 -
0.0% 128,507 -
36.1% 83,180 30,000
246,608 30,000
2024 2023
$ $
36,000 31,060
10,657 -
(16,557} -
- {1,060)
30,000 30,000
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
191,470 161,470 181,410 191,470
191,470 191,470 191,470 191,470
Consolldated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
33,199 11,285 33,199 11,265
124,157 174,068 265,372 237,021
620,000 - 520,000 -
777,356 182,333 918,671 249 188

Contract assets relate o funding recelved uinder the Financlal Assistance Agreament for the Gascoyne Irrigation Scheme Augmenlalion and Modernisalion project.
Up 1o 30 June 2024 31,860,000 funding was received of which $2,480,000 was spant on the project, A contract asset for the difference has been raised.
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Note 11 Financlal Assets at falr value through profit or loss

CURRENT
Managed Investment - designated at fair value through profit or loss

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of the fair values al the beginning and end of the current and
previous financial year are sef oul below,

Opening fair value

Additions

Disposals

Interest earnings & distributions
Feas

Revaluation increments
GClosing falr value

Note 12 Financial Assets at amortised cost

CURRENT

Financial assets at amortised cost - term deposits

The effectiva interest rate on long-term bank deposils was 4.99% (2023 4.73%).

NON-CURRENT

Financial assels at fair value through other
comprehensive income - invesiment in subsidiaries

Note 13 Composition of the Group

Name of subsidlary and place of business
Corel Coast Waeter Pty Ltd - Australia

Consolidated Group Parant Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
- 307,338 - 307,336
- 307,336 - 307,336
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
307,336 - 307,336 -
- 300,000 - 300,000
(317,359) - (317,358) -
10,023 1,805 10,023 1,205
. (500 - (600}
- 5,931 - 5,931
- 307,336 - 307,336
Gonsolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
81,055 163,668 81,065 153,658
81,055 153 668 81,055 153 668
Consoldated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
§ $ $ $
. - 1 1
- - 1 1
Percentage Owned* Percentage Owned®
2024 2023
% %
100% +00%

* . The percentage of ownership interest held is equivalent to the percentaga voling rights for all subsidiaries.
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Note 14 Property, Plant and Equipmant

Plant and Equipment:
- Al cost
- Accumulated depraciation
- Accumulated impatrment losses

Land and Bulldings:
- At cost
- Accumidated depreclation
- Accumitated impalrment losses

Leasshold improvements
- At cost
- Accumulated dapreciation
- Accumulated impairment josses

tregatlon Asset
- Al cost
- Accumulated dapreciation
- Accumutated impalrment tosses

Total property, plant and equipment

Consolidated Group Parant Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
] $ $ &
$18,356 591,520 618,356 §91,520
(354,908) {348,281) £364,908) {348,381)
(261,313) (243,139) £281,313) {243,139)
2,135 - 2,138 -
482,823 475,425 482,623 475,425
{181) - (181) -
{481,704) (475,425} {481,704) {476,425}
738 - 738 -
85,932 85,832 85,832 85,932
{28,015) {28,915} {28,915} (28,918)
(57,017) (57,017} {67,017) (57,017}
23,741,001 16,866,030 23,741,001 16,865,030
{2,219,002) {2,219,002) (2,219,002) (2,219,002)
(20,809,577} (14,748,028) {20,809,577) (14,746,028)
112,422 - 712,422 -
716,295 715,295 -
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Note 14 Property, Plant and Equipment {Cont)

Movemants In carrylng amounts

Movement in the carrying amaounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year:

tand and Plant and Leasehold {rrigation
Bulldings Equipment Improvements Assots Totai
$ § $ $ $
Consgelidated Group
Balance at 1 .July 2022 - - - - -
Additions 475,426 96,150 - 972,592 1,544,187
Disposals - - - - -
Depreciation expsnse - (7,248) - - {7,246)
Impairment loss {475,426) (88,804} - (972,582} (1,636,921)
Carrylng amount at 30 June 2023 - - - - -
Additions 7,198 24,810 - 6,775,971 6,808,019
Depreciation expense {181) {4,563) - . {4,744)
Impairment loss {6,279) {18,172} - {6,063,549) {8,088,000)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2024 738 2,138 - 712,422 115,295

impairment Testing

Tha recoverable amount of the consciidated entity as a cash generating unit has been determined by a value in use caloulation using a discounted cash flow model,
based on a 7 year projection pariod approved by management, together with a tarminal valua,

Key assumptions are thoze to which the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is most sensiive.

The folfowing key assumptions wera used in the discounted cash flow model for the consolidated entity:
{a) 6.64% pre-tax discounl rate;

(b} 2.5% per annurm projected ravenue growth rate.

{c) 2.0% per annum increase in operating cosls and overheads

The discouni rate of 6.84% pre-tax reflects managements estimate of the time value of money and the consclidated entity's weighted average cost of capital and the
risk free rate.

Management believas the projecied 2.5% revenus growth rate is prudent and justified, based on historical growth,

There were no other key assumptions for the consolidated entity.

Based on the abova, an impairment charge of $6,088,000 has been applisd as the carrying amount of the consciidated entity's assets exceeded their recoverable
amount,

{f there are any negative changes in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount of the consolidated entity's assels is based, this would result in a furthar
impairment charge.
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Note 16 Right-of-use assets

Land and buitdings - right-of-use
Accumilated depreciation
Accumidated impairment logses

Movements In carrying amounts

Consolidated Group

Bailance at 1 July 2022
Amortisation expense
Impairment expense

Carrying amount at 30 June 2023
Additiong
Disposals
Depreciation expanse
impairment expense

Carrying amount at 30 June 2024

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
74,212 74,212 74,212 74,212
(13,003) (13,003} {13,00%) {13,003)
(61,209) (81,209) (61,209) (61,209)
$
e

Gascoyne Waler Co-Operative Limited leases land and buildings for its offices as part of its Service Agreement (Agreemant) from CGascoyne Water Asset Mutual Co-
Operative Lid. The Agreement remains in effect while the consolidated entity kolds the Water Sarvice Licencs {Licence) for the Carnarvon Operaling Area. The

Licence expires on 22 June 2028,

Impalrinent Testing

Detalls of impairment testing of the consolidated entily as a cash generating unit are outlined at Note 14.

Note 16 Intangible Assets

Computer software

Cost

Accumuleted amortisation
Accumulated impainment losses
Net carrying smount

Total Intanglbles

Movements {n carrying amounts

Consolldated Group

Balance at f July 2022
Amortisation expense
impairmant expense

Carrying amount at 30 June 2023
Amortisation expense
impalrment expanse

Carrylng amount at 30 June 2024

impalrment Testing

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
210,439 210,439 210,436 210,439
{206,530) (206,530) {208.530) (208,530)
{3,808) {3,809) (3,809} {3,809)

Delails of impairment tesling of tha consolidated entity as a cash generating unil are outlined at Note 14,
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Note 17 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ §
CURRENT
Income 1ax payable - - - .
Tolal . - - -
(Charged)/
{Charged)/ Credits
Opening Credited to Directiyto  Changesin Exchange Closing
NON-CURRENT Balance Profit & L.oss Equity Tax Rates Differences Balance
Consgolldated Group $ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred tax llabHity
Other - - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2023 - - - - - -
Other - {165,000) - - . (155,000}
Balance at 30 June 2024 - {1565,000) - . - (165,000}
Deferred tax assels
Other 257,497 {109,883 B - - 147,634
Balance at 30 June 2023 257,497 {108 863} - - - 147,634
Other 147,634 1,433,845 - - - 1,681,476
Balance at 30 June 2024 147,634 1,433,846 - - - 1,681,478
{Charged)y
{Chargad)/ Credited
Opening Credited to Directly to  Changes in Exchange Cleslng
Parent Entity Balance Profit or Loss Equity Tax Rates Differences Balance
$ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred Tax Liabllity
Other - - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2023 - - - - - -
Other B (165,000} - . - {155,000)
Balance at 30 June 2024 . (186,000 - . - {155,000)
Deferred Tax Assets
Other 257,497 {109,863) - - - 147,634
Balance at 30 June 2023 257 487 {100,863} - - - 147 634
Other 147,634 4,433,845 . - - 1,681,479
Balance at 30 June 2024 147,634 1,433,845 - . - 1,581,479
Note 18 Trade and Other Payables
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
CURRENT
Trade payables 984,499 311,288 1,003,808 305,556
Other payablas 84,008 447,207 83,111 448,332
1,078,604 758,505 1,088,918 751 8848

Trada and other payables are unsecured, nen-Interest bearing and are normatly seltled within 30 days. The carrying value of trade and other payablas Is
considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due lo the short-term nature of the balances.
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Note 19 Contract Liabitities

Consotlldated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ 8
CURRENT
Conlract Habillties - 318,701 - 319,701
319,701 - 318,701

Contract assels retate lo funding recsived under the Financlat Assistance Agreement for the Gascoyne Irrigation Scheme Augmentation and Modamisation
project. Up 10 3G June 2024 §1,860,000 funding was received of which 52,480,000 was spent on the project. A contract asset for the difference has been
relsed.

Note 29 Provislons

Consolidated Group Parant Entity
Analysis of Provislons 2024 2023 2024 2023
CURRENT $ $ $ $
Annual Leave
Opening balance 8t 1 July 2023 5,043 7,472 6,043 7,172
Additions 35,083 31,172 38,083 31,172
Used (24,880) (32,301) {24,680) {32,301)
Batance at 30 June 2024 16,426 6,043 16,426 6,043
Note 21 Lease llabllitles
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ § $
Current 9,822 8,591 9,822 8,891
Non current 30,812 40,334 30,812 40,334
40,334 49 225 40,334 49,225
Refer to note 30 for furher information on financial instruments,
Note 22 Borrowings
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
CURRENT
Coral Coast Water - - - 1,748
Total non-curramd borrowings - - . 1.748
NON-CURRENT
Pipeling Loan - GWAMCO 5,642,708 3,042,706 5,542,708 3,042,708
Total nen-gurrent borrowings 5,642,708 3,042,706 5,542,706 3,042,706
Total borrowings 8,542,706 3,042,705 5,542,708 3,044 454

The Pipeline Loan 3 secured by a flxed and floating eharge over all the assets of the entily.

Refer fo note 36 for furlher information on financla! instruments,
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Note 23 GFS8t Funds Held in Trust

Consolidated Group Parent Enilty
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
DPIRD Funding 560,000 580,000 560,000 580,000
Sand Spear Trial {30,619} (30,619) {30,5189) (30,519)
GFBI Bore Davelopment Stage 2 (early access) (520,381) (520,351} {620,351} {520,381)
DPIRD Funding - GISAM {9,130) (9,130) (9,130) {9,130)
Tha Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and the Gascoyne Water Asset Mutual Co-operative Limited (collectively known as Gascoyne
Water) have entared into a collaborative funding agreement (the Agreement) with the State of Western Australla (the Slate} through His
Depariment of Primary {ndustries and Reglonal Davelopment (the Depariment) for:
1. Qperation of Gascoyne Food Bowl Initiativa (GFBI) Borefield,
2. Governance and Operationat Improvement; and
3. Financial Advice,
For the Period 1 January 2018 to 30 June 2028,
The transferring of ownership or fong term leasing of Pepartment GF Bl irrgation assels to, or by Gascoyne Water is still subject o future
policy decisions by Government ard furthar negolialion between the Department and Gascoyne Water,
The GFBI irigation infrastructure remains the proparty of the Slate during the term of, and at the ead of the Agreement.
If at any time during the course of the Agreemant (or extensions) and for any reason by either party, the Agreement is terminated, then any
unspent or uncommitted funds owed by elther party shali be repaid 1o the other party.
Refer to Note 29 for further detalls.
Note 24 issued Capital
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
A class shares 83,000 83,000 33,500 83,500
C class shares 1,630 8,152 7,980 9,602
90,630 92,152 91,480 93,002
Movements in ‘A class’ share capilal - consolidated group
Detalls Date Shares Issue Price $
Balance i July 2022 82,000 82,000
1ssue of Shares 4,500 $1 4,500
Shares brought-back (3,500) 81 {3,500)
Balance 30 June 2023 83,000 83,000
Issue of Shares ' 2,600 $ 2,800
Shares brought-hack {2,500) $ {2,600)
Balance 30 June 2024 83,000 83,000

Movements in 'C class' share capital - consolidated group

Detalls Date Shares issue Price
Balance 1 July 2022 9,130

Issua of Shares - 51
Shares brought-back - 51
Balance 30 June 2023 9,130

Issue of Shares - $1
Shares brought-back {1,522) §t

Balance 30 June 2024 7,608

$
9,152

$,152

(1,522)

7,830
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Note 24 Issued Capltal {Cont)

Movemants in ‘A class’ share capital - parent enlity
Dotalls

Balance

I1ssus of Shares

Shares brought-back

Batanice

tasue of Shares

Shares brought-back

Balance

Movements in 'C class' share capilel « parent entify
Detalis

Balance

Issug of Shares

Shares brought-back

Balance

issue of Shares

Shares brought-ack

Balance

Date
1 July 2022

30 June 2023

30 June 2024

Date
1 July 2022

30 June 2023

30 June 2024

Sharas
82,600
4,500
(3,500}
83,500
2,600
(2,500)

83,508

Shares
9,480

9,480
{1,622)

mmz—v—,n—"‘-s‘mmg

1saue Price 3
82,500
$1 4,500
$4 {3,500)
83,500
$ 2,600
$1 {2,500}
50
Issue Price $
8,502
81
$1
8,502
$1 -
§1 {1.522)
7,980
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Note 256 Key Management Personnel Remuneration
Key management personne! remuneration included within employee expenses for the year is shown below:

2024 2023
$ $
Shot-term employee benefits 266,747 328,295
Other long-term benefits 12,649 4,851
Post-employment banafits 28,149 32,853
306,545 366,989

Short-tarm employee benefits
These smounts include all salary, paid leave, fringe benefils and cash bonuses awarded o KMP.

OCther fong-term beneflts
Thess amounts kncluda annual leave and long service leava that is not payable wholly within twelve months after the end of the pariod.

Post-employmant benefits
These amounts are the currant-year's estimated cost of providing for the Co-cperatives suparannuation contributions made during the year.

Other KMP Transactions
Refer to Note 28 for further detaif of other related KMP transactions

Note 26 Related Party Transactions
The Group's main related parties are as follows:

Koy Management Personnel:

Any person(s) having authority and responsibilily for planning, directing and conlrolling the activilies of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
director {whether executive or othenwise) of that enlity is considered key management personnel. For detalls of disclosures refating to key
management personnef, refer tc Note 24: Key Managament Personnet Remuneration.

Entitles Subject to significant influence by the Co-operative
An antity that has the power 1o parlicipate in the financial and oparating policy decisions of an entity, but does not have conirol over those policles,
is an entity which holds significant influence. Significant influence may be galned by share ownership, statute or agreement.

Transaclions betwean ralated parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favoursbie than those availabla to other parties
uniess olherwise stated. The {ollowing transactions cccuwred with related partles:
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Note 26 Related Party Transactions {Cont)

Associated companies/individuals:

Sale of goods and services

Sale of goods and services- Coral Coast Water

Sale of goods end servicas - Gascoyna Water Assat Mulual
Purchiasa of gocds and services

Purchase of goods and services - Gascoyna Waler Asset Mutual
Purchase of goods and services - Gascoyne Water

Dividend Paki - Coral Coast Waler

Dividend recelved - Gascoyne Water

Loan Procesds - Gascoyne Water Asset Mutual

Amounts outstanding from related parties:
Trade and other receivables
Tradle and other receivables - Gascoyna Water Asset Mutual

Amounts payable to related parties:

Trade and olher payables

Trade and other payablas- Gascoyne Waler Asset Midual
Loans from associated entitles - Gascoyne Water Asset Mutual

Shares helg

Gascoyne Waler Co-operativa Limited shares held by Coral Coast Water Pty Ltd - A

Class

Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited shares held by Corat Coasl Waler Pty Ltd - C

Class

Coral Coast Water Pty Ltd held by Gascoyne Water Co-oparalive Limited
Gascoyne Water Asset Mulual Co-operative Limited held by Coral Goast Water Ply

Lid

Gascoyne Waler Asset Mutual Co-operative Limited held by Gascoyne Water Co-

operative Limited - A Class

Coral Coast Water

Gascoyne Water

2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ § $
82,148 704 202,295 118,611
. . 293,006 278,957
1,820 1,212 637,708 457,844
- . 933 300,547
(18,382) {18,362) {12,000} (12,000)
(293,005) (278,057) . .
{600,000} - - -
- - 00,000 -
- - 2,600,000 .
{727,368} {285,403} 4,111,838 1,144 959
2,669 - 122,004 1,037
. - 126,589 81,152
2,668 - 248,863 62,189
. - 2,320 3,015
- - 1,100 2,200
- - 5,542,708 3,042 708
- - 5,645,128 3,047,621
- - 500 500
) ) 350 350
1 1 - -
110 110 -
) ) 240 240
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Note 27 Cash Flow Information

{a) Reconcliiation of cash flows from operating activities with
Profit / (Joss) after lncome tax
Non-cash fiows In profit
- depreciation and amortisalion
- bad and doubtful debls
- {profity/loss on disposal of assels
- writeback of impairment loss on disposal of assels
- interest on lease Eabilities
- Managed Investiment income and expenses
- GFBI Fund Income
- iImpalrment expense
- dividends recelved
Changes In assets and liabililies, net of the effects of purchase and
digposal of subsldiaries
- (increase)/decrease in trade and other debtors
- {increase)/decrease in other assets
- {increase)/decrease In inventories
- (increase)/decrease in deferred tax asset
- increasel(decrease) In lrade and other payables
- increasel(decreass) in contract liabllities
- increasel(decrease) in deferred taxes payabls
- increase/(dscrease) In provisions
Net cash provided by operating activilies

Note 28 Contingent Liabilities

Consaclidated Group Parent Entity
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ $ $ $
(3,689,410} {422,691) (3,331,798) (689,927)
4,744 7,246 4,744 7,246
10,657 {1,650) 10,857 {1,060)
3,109 3,699 3,109 3,699
. (1,408) . (1,405)
- {9,130 - (9,130)
6,088,000 1,636,921 6,088,000 1,536,921
. - {500,600) .
{417,690} {42 825} {534,401) (77,807)
{696,023) 754 817 {6689,385) 687,764
. (94,878) - (94,878)
(1,433,845} 109,863 (1,433,845) 108,883
319,959 {206,146} 335,031 (301,183}
{319,701} 267,407 {319,701} 267 407
165,000 - 155,600 -
10,383 (1,129) 10,383 {1,120}
136,223 1,810,489 (18&306} 1,456,381

Under GWC's Rules, it must, 1o the extent permilted by law, indemnify its officers, including directors, secretaries and executlves, and agents against
llablliies which they may incur In the execution of their offices or by reason of any contract, act, deed, malter, or thing Involving them on behalf of, or

bona fide in the Interests of, or with a view 1o banafiting GWC,

GWC has also executed deeds of indemnity in favour of past and present directors, secrelaries and executives under which GWC must, to the extent
permitied by law, Indemnify those persons agalnst Habliities incurred as a officars of GWC fo Lhe exient that those persans are not otherwlss Indemnified.

The indemnity extends to legal cosls Incurred by those persons In responding to any investigations conducted by bedles wilh statutory powers to
tnvastigate and in defending actions for a loss or llablity incurced as an officer of GWC.

There were no known contingent liabilitles at 30 June 2024 In relation to the above indemnities.
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Note 29 Going Concern

As at 30 June 2024, the Consolidated enllly had a negative equily balance of $2,276,043 (2023: posHive balance of 31,385,393) mainly due to the
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment during the year of $8,088,000. The Diraclors beliave that the Consolidaled entily will continue to be
able fo pay for all s debt and expenditire whan they become due. As at 30 June 2024, cash held is $509,979 (2023: §4,315,368), Management are
forecasting annuat profits to return in the next financlal year and have thus had the financlal statements prapared on a going concern basls.

Note 30 Events After the Reporting Perlod

Gascoyne Foodbowl Initiative (GFBI)

The Gascoyne Water Co-Operalive Limited (GWC) signed a Heads of Agreement on 22 January 2021 with the Department of Primary Industries

and Regional Developmenl (DPRID). The agreement refates to the operation, maintenance and fulure transfer of Gascoyne Foodbowt initiative (GFSH
assels to GWC ownership.

This Heads of Agreement requires the 2017 Collaboration Grant Funding Agresment betwean GWC and DPRID to continue. The provision of an
instrument is required to grant legal access to the GFBH lands as required for the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER)
groundwater licensing requirements to maintaln Gascoyne Water Asset Mulua! Co-Operative Ltd's Water Licences.

Instaltation of the new connectlons for the GFBI development are expacied 1o commence in April 2025 with 2,100 C Class Shares scheduled to be
issued to the GFB1 proponents to the end of the 2025 financlal year,

Gascoyne Irrigation SBystem Augmentatlon and Modemnisation Projoct {G1SAM)

In June 2021 GWC successfully appHad to the National Water Gateway Authority (NWGA) for co-funding grants for a number of projects under the
headiine project of the Gascoyne lrrigation Systern Augmentation and Modernisation Project (GISAM). On 22 January 2022 a Funding Assistance
Agreemant (FAA) was executed between GWC and DPIRD. DPIRD are the responsible state government agency for handling grant monles and
raporting to the NWGA on the project outcomes. In total, $2.4m of funding was granted.

Outpu 1 of the GISAM project is the equipping and commssioning of the GFBI borefield. Construction of the GISAM project bagan In Seplember 2023.
The deadline of 31 December 2023 was delayed due to issues with materials. GWC has commenced legal proceedings In order to recover payments
for defeclive work. The amount polenlially recoverable Is substantial wilth reasonable prospacts of sucoess based on the current information avallable.

Defamation action
Defamation action between a former service provider v GWC and a previous Office Holder commenced In 2021, While the case continues against the
Office Holder, GWC are no longer a parly as an agreement was reached with the former service provider who has withdrawn the daim agalnst GWC.

internal Audit
An independent infernal audit was compieted by Wilam Buck. GWC Is implamenting recommendations for improvament and seeking advice
about the next steps.

Single Entity
A feasibility study s being undertaken to explore the possibitty of GWC and GWAMCO becoming a single entity.

No othar matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2024 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the group’s operations the
resulls of those operations, or the group's slate of affalrs in future financlal years.
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Note 31 Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives

The group’s activilies expose il to & varisty of inancial risks: market risk (including forelgn currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk},
credit risk and liquidity risk. The group's overall risk management program focuses on the unprediclability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effecls on the financial performance of the group. The group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward foreign exchange confracts to hedge certain risk exposures. Derivetives are exciusively used for hedging purposes, i.e. not as
{rading or other speculafive instruments, The group uses different meihods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These
methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of Interest rate, foreign exchange and other price risks, agelng analysis for credit risk and
beta analysis in respect of investment portfollos to determine market risk,

Rlsk management is carried out by senior management ('management’) under policies approved by the Board of Directors ('the Board').
These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the group and appropriale procedures, conlrols and risk limits.
Management identifies, evaluates and hedges financizal risks within the group's operating unils. Management reports 1o the Board on a
monthly basis,

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The group is nof exposed to any forelgn currency risk.
Price risk

The group Is nof exposed to any significant price risk.
Credit risk

Cradit risk refers 1o the risk thal a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss {0 the group. The group
has a strict code of credit, including oblaining agency credit information, confirming references and setting appropriate credit limits. The
group obiaing guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date fo
recognised financal assels is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assels, as disclosed in the statement of
financial position and notes fo the financial statementis. The group does not hold any collateral.

The group has adopled a hifetime expected loss allowance in estimating expecled credit losses to trade recelvables through the ise of a
provisions matrix using fixed rates of credit loss provisioning. These provisions are considered representative across alf customers of the
group based on recent sales experience, historical collection rates and forward-looking information that is available.

The group has a credit risk exposure with one receivabls which as at 30 June 2024 owed the group $4,180 (3% of trade receivables) (2023
owed the group $5,714 (2% of trade receivables)). This receivable is outside their terms of trade and an impairment was made as at 30
June 2024 (2023 these receivables ware cutside of their terms of frade and an impairment was made as at 30 June 2023). There are no
guarantees against lhis receivable bul management closely monitors the receivables balance on a monthly basis and I3 in reguiar contact
with these recelvables to miligate risk.

Generally, irade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable sxpactation of recovery. Indicators of this Include the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan, no active enforcement activily and a failure to make contractual payments for a pericd greater than
1 year,
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ttote 31 Financial Instrument (Cont)
Liguidity risk

Vigitant tiquidity risk management requires the group to maintain sufficient liquid assets {mainly cash and cash equivalents) and available
borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.

The group manages liquiddy rigk by maintalning adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring
actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profilas of financial assets and liabilities.

Financing arrangements

Unused borrowing facilities at the reporling date:
Consolidated
2024 2023
$ $
Bank overdraft - -
Bank loans - -

Remaining contractual maturities

The following tables detalf the group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrumant liabllities, The tables have been drawr up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilties based on the earliest date on which the financial liabilities are required to be
paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows disclosed as remaining contractual maturities and therefore these totals may
differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position.

Weighted
average Remaining
interest Betwean 1and 2 Between 2 and 5 contractual
Consolidated - 2023 rate 1 year or less years years Over 5 years maturitles
% L $ $ $ $
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade payables - 758,605 - - - 758,608
loan - GWAMCO (Pipaline) - - - - 3,042,706 3,042,708
interest bearing - fived rate
Leasa Hability 7.1% 12,000 12,000 33,880 - 57,880
Tetal non-derivatives 770,506 12,000 33,960 3,042,706 3,858,171
Weighted
average Remalning
interest Between t and 2 Between 2 and 5 contractual
Consolidated - 2024 rate 1 year or jess years years Over 5 years maturities
Y $ $ $ $ $
Non-derivatives
Non-intarest besring
Trade payabiles - 1,078,504 - - - 1,078,504
Loan - GWAMCO {Pipeting) - - - 5542,706 5,542,708
interast bearing - fixed rate
Lease liability 7.1% 12,000 12,000 21,960 - 45,960
Total non-derivatives 4,080,504 12,000 21,980 5,642,706 §6,867,170

The cash flows in the maturily analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than confraciually disclosed above.
Fair vatue of financial insiruments

Unless otherwise staled, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
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Mote 32 Capital Commitments

Confracted for:
- capital expenditure projects

Payable:
- not later than one year

Consolldated

2024 2023
$ $
- 97,673
- 97,673
- 97,673




Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limlted and Controlled Entitles
Birectors’ Declaration
For the year ended 30 June 2024

in accordance with a resclution of the directors of GASCOYNE WATER CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED AND
CONTROLLED ENTITIES, the directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 June 2023 are in accordance with the Co-operatives
Act 2009 and:

(@) comply with Australian Accounting Standards;

(b give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2024 and of the performance for the
year ended on that date of the company.

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.

Director

Paul Shain Anthony Vrankovich

2%

Pated this  Day of March 2025 Dated this J &)ay of March 2025
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

To the Board of Directors of Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and controlled entities

In accordance with the requirements of the Co-operatives Act 2009 (WA), in relation to our audit of the financial
report of Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2024, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Co-Operatives Act 2009 (WA) in relation
to the audit; and
b. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

Australian Audit

L

Chassey Davids, CA, RCA, AMIIA, BCom
Registered Company Auditor number 490152
Director

Australian Audit

Perth, Western Australia

Date: 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and controlled entities

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and controlled entities (the entity),
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the directors'
declaration.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the accompanying financial report has been prepared in accordance with requirements of the Co-operatives Act
2009 (WA), including:

a. giving a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2024, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

b. complying with the Co-operatives Regulations 2010 (WA); and

c. the accounting records and other records, and the registers required by the Co-operatives Act 2009 (WA) to
be kept by the Co-operative have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

d. we have been given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of the audit; and

e. complying with Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We did not attend stock take of inventory held as at 30 June 2024. As a result, we were unable to verify the
existence and valuation of the Gascoyne Water Co-operative Limited and controlled entities inventory balance of
$191,470 as at 30 June 2024.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 29 in the financial report, which indicates that the Company has a negative equity
balance of $2,276,043. This was mainly due to the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment during
the year of $6,088,000. The Directors are satisfied that the entity will be able to continue operating as a going
concern and will be able to meet all future financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
Australian Audit is a CA Practice
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standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our
report. We are independent of the entity in accordance with Co-operatives Act 2009 (WA) and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Cor-Operatives Act 2009 (WA), which has been given
to the Board of Directors of the entity, would be in the same terms if given to the Board of Directors as at the time
of this auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and The Board of Directors for the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and the Co-operatives Act 2009 (WA). The responsibility of Management also
includes such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Australian Audit is a CA Practice



¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Australian Audit

L

Chassey Davids, CA, RCA, AMIIA, BCom
Registered Company Auditor number 490152

Director

Australian Audit
Perth, Western Australia
Date: 28 March 2025
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